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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Date of transcription 08/24/1999 

Force Agent (TFA) 
At approximately 2:30 p.m., on August .tely 2:30 p 

] contacted|_ 
24, 1999, Task 
Radio Shack 

206 East Kellogg, Wichita, Kansas, 

(provided TFjj 1 with a more ( |£,__1_(_ _ detailed written 
list of items stolen in the Radio Shack robbery on July 21, 1999. 

Attached 
the aforementioned 

and therefore made a part of this FD-302 
list. 

is 

b6 

b7C 

Investigation on 08/24/1999 at Wichita, Kansas_ 

File# 192B-KC-81718 " U&_ _Date dictated 08 /24 /1999 

by TFA | \___ 
b6 

b7C 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; 

it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency. 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Date of transcription 08/24/1999 

At approximately 2:00 p.m., on August 24, 1999, 
Corporal I |of the Sedgwick County Detention 

Facility was contacted by Task Force rAgent (TFA) 
|in reference to the clothing of 

Corporal lobtained the Inmate Property 

b6 

b7C 

Inventory sheet which was completed when 
detention facility on August 7, 1999 and provided TFA 

was booked into the 

copy of it. Corporal gave TFA custody or 

with a 

clothing which has been in the custody of the detention facility 

since 
were received: 

was booked on August 7, 1999. The following items 

1. A red Roundtree & Yorke short sleeve, button up 

shirt, size XL; 
2. Navy blue Silkworks Savane slacks, size 31-32; 
3. Black Outdoor Exchange lace-up boots, size 10M. 

The aforementioned items were marked and turned into 
Wichita Police Department Property and Evidence, under case 
number 99C67674/Radio Shack. A copy of the Inmate Property 
Inventory sheet is attached to and therefore, made a part of this 
FD-302. 

Investigation on 08/24/1999 at Wichita, Kansas 

File# 192B-KC-81718 

by 

Date dictated 08/24/1999 

TFA 
K 

b6 

b7C 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; 

it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency. 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Date of transcription 08/24 /1999 

Force Agent (TFA)| 

At approximately 2:30 
contacted 

jD. m. on Auaus.t 24, 1999, Task 
Radio Shack 

at 206 East Kellogg, Wichita, Kansas. 

shipping 

provided TFA with a packing list and 
order tor merchandise the Radio Shack store has received 

explained that order number 762135, during August 1999, - - - 
unit #01-0203, is tor merchandise his store received from Fort 

Worth, Texas, shipped on August 16, 1999. 

Attached and therefore made a part of this FD-302 are 

the aforementioned shipping order and packing list. 

b6 

b7C 

Investigation on 

File# 192B-KC-81718 

08/24/1999 at Wichita, Kansas 

m_ Date dictated 08/24/1999 

by TFA 
-JL be 

blC 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; 

it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency. 



Tho fom boxes used for this shipment conform to the specifications tel forth In the box 
mart's certificate thereon, and all other requirements of Uniform Freight Classification 

fShlppei'a Imprint In lieu of stamp: not a part of b0 of .”"'*5 
t lading approved by the Interstate Commerce Comminiori k - ».j 

00/16/1999 THIS SHIPPING ORDER must ba legibly filled in, In fnk. In Indelible Pencil, or In' 
Carbon, and retained by the Agent * 

SHIPPER'S 
NO. 

oitfeo&aaaH 
I QMTFP C£L _CARRIER’S N6._^-!_-;- 

RECEIVED, subject to the Classlflcationa end Lawfully Filed Tariffs In effect fch the date of the Issue of thl3 BOI of Lading. 

WORTH;_STATE FROM. - TANDY DC#_0203 tS 

SHIPPERS NUMBER SHOWN ABOVE MUST APPEAR f 
' ON FREIGHT BILL BEFORE PAYMENT WILL 8EMAD£ f 

AND NUMBER 3 COPY OF BILL OF LADING MUSTV? 
ACCOMPANY ORIGINAL PREPAID FREIGHT BjUJ%gj% 

to ST; ^ «rt forth <1) m Officii. Soutt^nTmnd Ifflnots Fo-oht 
in effect on the date hereof, H this la a raB or relLwaler shipment, or (2) In the applicable motor Canter classification or tariff If this ba mc^ canter shipment 
Shipper hereby certlflee th*t he l» familiar with olr the tann* end condition* of the said bill of Udine, Including tho** on th* back thereof. *et forth In the eJaaalflcatJon or tartfl which govern* the trwuportsOoo o< . 

thU shipment, end the **Jd term* and conditions are haraby agraad to by the shipper and accepted for hImteK and hi* aaalgna. ^ ccn&pom—Fot porpoeae at notification oniy.) ‘ 

CONSIGNED TO; 

206 E KELLOGG 

; XROUTINQINPPRMATION. 

DELIVERY CARRIER 77 | 

CITY* STATE ' :/.COUNTRY' • - " zip ooderW' 

UXCHXXQ_ ■ KJEL- JS_-_ESQ— R7?.n.2_ 

M'POOL.IB: 

Subject to Section 7 cf Condttjoihr of 
applicable bD of lacing. If this shipment f» 
to be dowered .to the consignee without- 
recourse on the consignor, the cor*S<jx*, 
shall algo tho foiowtog statement *-'• 
The canter shall not make deCvery of 1M* 

shipment without payment of fret^t* and 
aH other lawful charge*. . * 

CLASS f . •; 

62440 

PCS, ; • ... -WEIGHT. DESCRIPTION'OF ARTICLES, SPECIAL MARKS AND EXCEPTIONS N-M.EC.- , 

43 LOUDSPEAKERS, N.O.I., OARS or L 

0 ANTENNA, TV RECV, O/T PARABOLIC, 4-6 PCF, 
riQPc; or 1_:_-_ 

64 RADIOS O/T CONSOLE, TELEVISIONS, PREAMPS 
nr QMPI TPTPPc: nope; nr I_1_—— 

RADIO TRANSMITTING & RECEIVING SETS 

2 LOUDSPEAKERS WITH or WITHOUT HORNS, 
TKI P.QTITNFTC: nr HnilSTNfiS . OQRS Or I- 

"10 ELECTRICAL APPLIANCES or.. INSTRUMENTS, 
m n -t nope; nr l_—- 

1 MACHINES, SYSTEMS, or DEVICES, 
.tigto PPnnpciQTKi^* nQpR nr l_I- 

23 TELEPHONES, SETS, or PARTS, N.O.I., 
no P C; o r- I_____—- 

10 CONTROLLERS or* CONTROLLER PARTS, N.O.I., 
OQPQ or* I __ 

240 BOOKS, N.O.I., OARS or L’ ’ . 

BATTERIES, ELECTRIC DRY CELL, OARS or L 

MASTS, RADIO or TV, TUBULAR CONSTRUCTION, 

Received $ ' -± 
to apply on prepayment of th# 
charge# on th# property 
described heron. ‘ i , \ 

■ !9t ■ M #1±J £■!■■■ •! 31 

INSIDE DELIVERY AUTHORIZED ]F 
NECESSARY AND‘REQ\J ESTED. 

If the shipment moves between two porta by a canter by water, the tew requires that the bill ot lading ahall stale whether It la'a “carriei'e or shipper's weight 
NOTE.. Where the rate la dependent on value, shippers are required to stale specifically In writing the agroefLor declared value of the property. 
The agreed or declared value of the property IS hereby specifically stated by the shipper to bo not exceeding v ' ' P«r* 

Tandy 824k20>&. •'.Shipper, Per_ 
9 Tht» I* not th# B/L# "‘j.- ■- < 

n ' ,s &• ‘ ' 
Permanent post-office address of shipper: j-—L: i iarj a n a afsi w ;T#iai il 

AoentL: 

j Total Chargoa. 

— shipping: .opdiebM 
sp*i 

Pet’Ci 'v^lw^ls ' - " " '**)! 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Date of transcription 09/07/1999 

_ On September 3, 1999, Task Force Agent |_ | 
received a Criminalistic Laboratory Report from the Wichita 

Police Department in reference to Wichita Police Case 99C67674, 
Radio Shack Robbery, which occurred on July 21, 1999. 

Latent Print Examiners and 
,compared latent fingerprints lifted from the left exterior 

aoor pv Invl |to known fingerprints of I 
They report these latents and 

fingerprints match. 

Attached to and therefore made a 
a copy of the aforementioned Criminalistic 

part of this FD-302 is 
Laboratory Report. 

b6 

b7C 

investigation on 09/03/199.9 at Wichita, Kansas_ 

File # 192B-KC-81718 _Date dictated 09/07/1999 
_l_ 

by TFA 

h6 

hlC 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; 
it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency. 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 

FILED 

UNITED STATES QF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 

) 
vs. ) 

) 
) 
) 

Defendants. ) 
___.) 

SEP 28 1999 

Criminal Action 

b6 

b7C 

STTPFKSEDTNG INDICTMENT 

The Grand Jury charges: 

l COUNT ! 

■ From on or about a date unknown to the Grand Jury until on or about August 

3, 1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendants, 

b6 

b7C 

did unlawfully, knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate and agree 

together with each other to, in any way or degree, obstruct, delay and affect 

commerce and the movement of any article or'commodity in commerce by 

robbery, to-wit: the taking and obtaining of personal property, namely United 

States Currency, from the person and presence of employees of businesses engaged 

i 



in and affecting interstate commerce, against their will, by means of actual and 

threatened violence, force, and fear of injury to its employees. 

—--- 

In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the objects thereof, the 

defendants performed over acts including: 

1. The acts alleged in Counts 3 through 18 below; 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951. 

COUNT2 

From on or about a date unknown to the Grand Jury until on or about August 

3,1999, in the District of Kansas, fhe defendants, 
■_k_ 

did unlawfully, knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate and agree 

together with each other to, knowingly use a firearm during and in relation to a 

crime of violence for which they may be prosecuted in a court of the United States, 

contrary to Title 18, United States Code, Sections 924 (c)(1)(A); 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 924 (o). 

V 



relation to a crime of violence for which may be prosecuted in a court of the United 

States, the robbery of die Furrs Family Dining, in violation of Title 18, United 

States Code, Sections 924 (c)(l)(A)(ii) and 2. 

COUNT 12 

On or about July 21,1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendants, - 

b6 

b7C 

did unlawfully, knowingly and willfully in any way or degree obstruct, delay and 

affect commerce and did attempt to obstruct delay and affect commerce and the 

movement of any article or commodity in commerce by robbery, to-wit. the 

defendants did take and obtain personal property, namely, United States Currency 

from the person and presence of employees of the Radio Shack, 206 East Kellogg, 

Wichita, Kansas a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce, against 

their will, by means of actual and threatened violence, force, and fear of injury to 

its employees, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951 and 2. 

COUNT 13 

On or about July 21,1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendants, 

b6 

b7C 

knowingly carried a firearm to wit: a semiautomatic handgun, during and in 

relation to a crime of violence for which they ihay be'prosecuted in a court of the 

7 



United States, the robbery of the Radio Shack, in violation of Title 18, United 

States Code, Sections 924 (c)(1)(A) and 2. 
/ 

-----COUNT 14 - ..- 

On or about July 21,1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendants, 
b6 

I * I b7C 

knowingly brandished a firearm to wit: a semiautomatic handgun, during and in 

relation to a crime of violence for which they may be prosecuted in a court of the 

United States, the robbery of the Radio Shack, in violation of Title. 18, Umted 

States Code, Sections 924 (c)(l)(A)(ii) and 2. 

, COUNT 15 
4 

On or about August 3,1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendants. 

b6 

did unlawfully, knowingly and willfully in any way or degree obstruct, delay and b7c 

affect commerce and did attempt to obstruct delay and affect commerce and the. 

movement of any article or commodity in commerce by robbery, to-wit. the 

defendants did take and obtain personal property, namely. United States Currency 

from the person and presence of employees of the Prologic Computer Store, 6419 

East Kellogg, Wichita, Kansas a business engaged in and affecting interstate 
t 

commerce, against their will, by means of actual andlthreatened violence, force, and 



COUNT 18 

From on or about June 3,1999, until on or about August 3,1999, in the 
/ 

District of Kansas, the defendants,' 

b6 

__| b7C 

defendants herein, both having been convicted of a crime punishable by 

imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, did both knowingly possess in or 

affecting commerce, a firearm, to wit: semiautomatic handguns, which had been 

shipped and transported in interstate commerce, in violation of Title 18 United 

States Code, Section 922(g)(1). 

A TRUE BILL 
l- 

JACKIE N. WILLIAMS 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 
District of Kansas . 
1200 Epic Center, 301N. Main \ 
Wichita, KS 67202 
Ks. S.Ct. No. 07333 

10 



(It is requested that trial be held in Wichita, Kansas.) 

11 



FILED 
!J.S. DISTRICT COURT 
DISTR.vf OF KANSAS 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS DcC 9 4 38 PH *99 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

A! 

Criminal Action 

b6 

b7C 

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 

The Grand Jury charges: 

COUNT 1 

From on or about a date unknown to the Grand Jury until on or about August 

3,1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendant, 

did unlawfully, knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate and agree 

■with! a co-defendant not charged herein, to, in any way 

b6 

b7C 

or degree, obstruct, delay and affect commerce and the movement of any article or 

commodity in commerce by robbery, to-wit: the taking and obtaining of personal 

property, namely United States Currency, from the person and presence of 

employees of businesses engaged 



in and affecting interstate commerce, against their will, by means of actual and 

threatened violence, force, and fear of injury to its employees. 

OVERT ACTS OF CONSPIRACY 

In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the objects thereof, the 

defendants performed over acts, including: 

1. The acts alleged in Counts 3 through 15 below; 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951. 

COUNT2 

From on or about a date unknown to the Grand Jury until on or about August 

3, 1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendant, 

did unlawfully, knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate and agree 

with a co¬ defendant not charged herein, to knowingly use 

a firearm during and in relation to a crime of violence for which they may be 

prosecuted in a court of the United States, contrary to Title 18, United States Code, 

Sections 924 (c)(1)(A); 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 924 (o). 



COUNT 9 

On or about July 21,1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendant, 

along with k co-defendant not charged herein, did 

unlawfully, knowingly and willfully in any way or degree obstruct, delay and affect 

commerce and did attempt to obstruct delay and affect commerce and the 

movement of any article or commodity in commerce by robbery, to-wit: the 

defendants did take and obtain personal property, namely, merchandise and United 

b6 

b7C 

States currency from the person and presence of employees of the Radio Shack, 

206 East Kellogg, Wichita, Kansas a business engaged in and affecting interstate 

commerce, against their will, by means of actual and threatened violence, force, 

and fear of injury to its employees, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

Sections 1951 and 2. 

COUNT 10 

On or about July 21,1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendants, 

b6 

I-' b7C 

knowingly carried a firearm to wit: a semiautomatic handgun, during and in 

relation to a crime of violence for which they may be prosecuted in a court of the 

6 



• • 
United States, the robbery of the Radio Shack, in violation of Title 18, United 

States Code, Sections 924 (c)(1)(A) and 2. 

COUNT 11 

On or about July 21,1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendants, 

b6 

b7C 

knowingly brandished a firearm to wit: a semiautomatic handgun, during and m 

relation to a crime of violence for which they may be prosecuted in a court of the 

United States, the robbery of the Radio Shack, in violation of Title 18, United 

States Code, Sections 924 (c)(l)(A)(ii) and 2. 

COUNT 12 

On or about August 3,1999, in the District of Kansas, the defendant, 

a co-defendant not charged herein, did b6 
b7C 

unlawfully, knowingly and willfully in any way or degree obstruct, delay and affect 

commerce and did attempt to obstruct delay and affect commerce and the 

movement of any article or commodity in commerce by robbery, to-wit: the 

defendants did take and obtain personal property, namely, merchandise and United 

States currency from the person and presence of employees of the Prologic 

Computer Store, 6419 East Kellogg, Wichita, Kansas a business engaged in and 

7 



COUNT 15 

From on or about June 3, 1999, until on or about August 3, 1999, in the 

District of Kansas, the defendant, 

b6 

b7* 

having been convicted of a crime punishable by imprisonment for a term exceeding 

one year, did both knowingly possess in or affecting commerce, a firearm, to wit. 

semiautomatic handguns, which had been shipped and transported in interstate 

commerce, in violation of Title 18 United States Code, Section 922(g)(1). 

A TRUE BILL 

District of Kansas 
1200 Epic Center, 301 N. Main 

Wichita, KS 67202 

Ks. S.Ct. No. 07333 

(It is requested that trial be held in Wichita, Kansas.) 

9 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 



FILED 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT R q tqq 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS ^ 0 3 AFi 33 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 

) 
Plaintiff, ) 

) Criminal Action 

vs. ) 

) 
) 
) 

Defendant. ) 

_) 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

COMES NOW the United States of America, by and through its Assistant 

United States Attome>_and the defendan 

_and his attorney Assistant Federal Public Defender, 

and enter into the following Agreement pursuant to Rule 11(e)(1)(A) & (B) of the 

Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. 

1. Defendant, agrees to enter a 

voluntary plea to Counts 10,12 and 15 which charge him with committing the 

Hobbs Act robberies of the Radio Shack, 206 E. Kellogg, Wichita, Kansas on July 

21,1999, and the Prologic Computer Store, 6419 East Kellogg, Wichita, Kansas on 

August 3, 1999, and with carrying a firearm, during and in'relation to the robbery of 

the Furrs Family dining, 2021 N. Amidon, in Wichita, Kansas on July 20,1999. In 



violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951, 924(c)(1) (A)and 2. 

2. In exchange for the plea of guilty, and his cooperation as set out below, 

the United States agrees as follows: 

a. To dismiss the remaining charges; 

b. Pursuant to the United States Sentencing Guidelines, Section 

3E1.1, if the defendant is forthright with the United States, we agree to 

recommend to the Court that the defendant receive a three level 

decrease in his offense level for acceptance of responsibility; 

c. For the Court’s use in sentencing, the United States will provide 

the pertinent facts and background information to the Court concerning 

the offense(s) committed, defendant’s degree of involvement, and the 

defendant's cooperation with the authorities; and 

d. If the defendant's cooperation, in the sole discretion of the 

United States Attorney's Office for the District of Kansas, 

amounts to substantial assistance, the United States will file the 

appropriate motion to depart pursuant to Section 5K1.1 of the 

Sentencing Guidelines and title 18, U.S.C. 3553(e). 

3. The defendant, in consideration of the items listed in paragraph 2 

above, agrees as follows: 

a. Defendant agrees to fully cooperate with the United States 



by being truthful, honest and candid as to all matters, within his 

knowledge, which relate to this investigation, as well as other 

I I b6 offenses involving the defendant, his codefendant and/or b7c 

others. This includes: 

(1) Complete debriefings/interviews when 

requested by this office; 

(2) Testifying in federal grand jury proceedings 

as necessary; 

(3) Testifying in federal court as necessary; and 

(4) Assisting in the gathering evidence, as 

deemed necessary by the United States. 

4. It is further agreed and understood between the United States and the 

defendant, that: 

a. If it becomes apparent, for whatever reason or from 

whatever source, that the defendant has not fully 

cooperated or will not continue to cooperate as required 

by this agreement, this agreement would become null and 

void and the United States could immediately present 

evidence, including information provided by the defendant 

pursuant to this agreement, to a federal grand jury or to 



state authorities and prosecute this defendant on all known 

violations of federal and/or state law; 

b. No information given by this defendant subsequent to and 

in response to this agreement will be used against him in any 

criminal case or criminal investigation, except as described in 

Paragraph 4a, or in a prosecution for peijury, or a perjury-related 

offense. 

5. The parties agree that the United States has advised this defendant that 

the matter of sentence is entirely within the purview of the sentencing court, and that 

the United States has made no promises to this defendant, or his attorney, regarding 

what sentence might be imposed. 

6. It is lastly agreed and understood that this plea agreement is the only 

agreement between the United States and the defendant concerning his plea of guilty 

in the above-styled action, and that there are no other deals, bargains, agreements, 

or understandings which modify or alter this agreement. The defendant and his 

attorney acknowledge the defendant is entering into this agreement and is pleading 

guilty because he is guilty and that his plea is made freely and voluntarily without 

threats, force, intimidation or coercion of any kind. 





IN UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 

filed 
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DISTRICT OF KANSAS 
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PETITION TO ENTER PLEA 
OF GUILTY AND ORDER 
ENTERING PLEA 

[Federal Rules of Criminal 
Procedure, Rules 10 and 11] 

(4) I told my lawyer all the facts and circumstances known to me about the charges made 

against me in the Superseding Indictment and I believe my lawyer is fully informed in this matter. 

(5) I know that the Court must be satisfied that there is a factual basis for a plea of 

"GUILTY" before my plea can be accepted. I represent to the Court that I did the following acts 

in connection with the charges made against me in Counts 10, 12 and 15. On or about July 20, 

1999,1 did knowingly carry a firearm during and in relation to the robbery of the Furrs Family 

Dining located in Wichita, Kansas, which is a crime of violence, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ b6 

924(c)(l)(A)(i) and 2. Additionally, on or about July 21, 1999, myself and| |did b7c 

unlawfully, knowingly and willfully obstruct, delay and affect commerce by robbing the Radio . . 

Shack store of monies. This store is located at 206 E. Kellogg, Wichita, Kansas, and is a business 

which is engaged in and affecting interstate commerce, and this robbery was accomplished by ’ 

means of force, violence or intimidation in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1951 and 2. Moreover, on 
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or about August 3, 1999, myself and did unlawfully, knowingly and willfully 
obstruct, delay and affect interstate commerce by robbing the Prologic Computer Store of monies. 
This store is located at 6419 E. Kellogg, Wichita, Kansas, and is a business engaged in and 
affecting interstate commerce, and this robbery was accomplished by force, violence or 
intimidation in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1951 and 2. All the above offenses being pleaded to 
were committed in the District of Kansas. 

b6 

b7C 

(6) My lawyer has counseled and advised me on the nature of each charge, on all lesser 
included charges, and on all possible defenses that I might have in this case. 

(7) I know that I have the right to plead "NOT GUILTY" to any offense charged against 
me. If I plead "NOT GUILTY" I know the Constitution guarantees me (a) the right to a speedy 
and public trial by a jury; (b) at that trial, and at all stages of the proceedings, the right to the 
assistance of a lawyer; (c) the right to see and hear all witnesses called to testily against me, and 
the right to cross-examine those witnesses; (d) the right to use the power and process of the Court 
to compel the production of any evidence, including the attendance of any witnesses in my favor; 
and (e) the right not to be compelled to incriminate myself by taking the witness stand; and if I 
do not take the witness stand, no inference of guilt may be drawn from such failure. 

(8) I know that if I plead "GUILTY, "lam thereby waiving my right to a trial, and that 
there will be no further trial of any kind, either before a Court or jury; and further, I realize the 
Court may impose the same punishment as if I had pleaded "NOT GUILTY," stood trial, and been 
convicted by a jury. 

(9) I know that if I plead "GUILTY," the Court will ask me questions about the 
offense(s) to which I have pleaded, and since I will be answering these questions under oath, on 
the record, and in the presence of my lawyer, that my answers may later be used against me in 
a prosecution for perjury or false statement. 

(10) My lawyer informed me that the plea of "GUILTY" to Count 10 could subject me 
to a mandatory minimum sentence of not less than _5_ years imprisonment (if applicable) and to 
a maximum punishment which, as provided by law, is LIFE imprisonment to be followed by a 
term of supervised releaseof at least 5 years (Title 21 drug offense) and not to exceed _5_ years 
(greater of 18 U.S.C. § 3583(b) or Title 21 drug offense), and a fine of $ 250,000 (which may 
accrue interest if not paid at time of sentencing). For the offenses charged in Counts 12 and 15 
of the Superseding Indictment, my lawyer has informed me that the plea of “GUILTY” to Counts 
12 and 15 could subject me to a mandatory minimum of not less than O years imprisonment and 
to a maximum term of punishment of 20 years. I have also been informed that should the Court 
find me in violation of the supervised release term, the term could be revoked and an additional 
term of imprisonment not to exceed 5_ years as to count 10, and 2 years as to counts 12 and 15 
may be imposed pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3583(e)(3). I have also been informed that the Court 
shall order me to make restitution in compliance with 18 U.S.C. § 3663A and § 3664 or as a 
condition of supervision, in addition to any other penalty provided by law. I further understand 
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that if I am pleading "GUILTY" to an offense which is subject to the Sentencing Reform Act, I 
cannot be released on parole and, if imprisonment is ordered in my case, the sentence imposed 
by the Court will be the sentence I serve less any good time credit if I earn it. 

(11) I know that in addition to any other penalty imposed, including any fine or restitution 
order, the Court is required to impose a special monetary assessment in the amount of $100.00 
for each count in which the offense occurred after April 24, 1996. I UNDERSTAND THIS 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT MUST BE PAID AT THE TIME OF THE SENTENCING HEARING 
UNLESS THE COURT DIRECTS OTHERWISE. 

(12) I understand that if my case involves drug trafficking or drug possession, the Court 
may deny or suspend my eligibility to receive federal benefits pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 862, except 
for those specifically exempted. I understand that if this is my second or subsequent conviction 
for possession of a controlled substance, the Court may order me to complete drug treatment or 
community service as specified in the sentence as a condition for reinstatement of benefits. 

(13) I know that the Court may also order, in addition to the penalty imposed, that I give 
reasonable notice and explanation of die conviction, in such form as the Court may approve, to 
the victims of the offense. 

(14) I have been advised and understand that if I am not a U.S. citizen, a conviction of 
a criminal offense may result in deportation from the United States, exclusion from admission to 
the United States, and/or denial of naturalization. 

(15) If I am on probation or parole in this or any other Court, I know that by pleading 
guilty here, my probation or parole may be revoked and I may be required to serve time in that 
case, which will be consecutive, that is, in addition to any sentence imposed upon me in this case. 

(16) I declare that no officer or agent of any branch of government (federal, state, or 
local) has promised, suggested, or predicted that I will receive a lighter sentence, or probation, 
or any other form of leniency if I plead "GUILTY," except as follows: (Here insert any promises 
or concessions made to the defendant or his attorney. If plea of "GUILTY" is the result of the 
plea agreement, refer to paragraph (18) on page 4.) 

If anyone else, including my attorney, made such a promise, suggestion, or prediction, 
except as noted in the previous sentence, I know that he had no authority to do so. 

I know that the sentence I will receive is solely a matter within the control of the Judge. 
I do understand that there is no limitation on the information the Judge can consider at the time 
of sentencing concerning my background, character, and conduct, provided the information is 
reliable, 18 U.S.C. § 3661. I do understand that if I am subject to sentencing under the 
Sentencing Reform Act and the Sentencing Guidelines issued by the United States Sentencing 
Commission, a sentencing guideline range is established. The Judge must select a sentence from 



within the guideline range unless my case presents unusual features which permit the Judge to 
depart from the guidelines and impose a sentence either above or below the recommended 
guideline range. In determining the guideline range, whether to depart, and the sentence to 
impose, the Court may take into account all relevant criminal conduct, which may include counts 
to which I have not pled guilty or been convicted and take into account background characteristics, 
unless otherwise prohibited by law. I further understand that my background characteristics 
including, but not limited to, the recency and frequency of my prior criminal record, whether or 
not a substantial portion of my income resulted from criminal conduct, my role in the offense, 
victim-related circumstances, and my acceptance of the responsibility for the offense, may have 
a specific effect on the sentence. 

I hope to receive leniency, but I am prepared to accept any punishment permitted by law 
which the Court sees fit to impose. However, I respectfully request the Court to consider, in 
mitigation of punishment, that I have voluntarily entered a plea of guilty. 

(17) I understand that a U.S. Probation Officer will be assigned to conduct a thorough 
presentence investigation to develop all relevant facts concerning my case unless the Court finds 
that there is in the record sufficient information to enable the meaningful exercise of sentencing 
authority pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3553. The report of the presentence investigation shall contain 
the factors set forth in Rule 32. These include the classification of the offense and of the 
defendant under the categories established by the Sentencing Commission, the kinds of sentence 
available to the Court, and the sentencing range the officer believes applicable. The report shall 
include the histoiy and characteristics of the defendant and such other information required by the 
Court recognizing the factors set forth in paragraph (16) above. 

(18) My plea of guilty is the result of my plea agreement entered into between the 
Government attorney, my attorney, and me. 

Since my plea of guilty is the result of a plea agreement, I hereby state that the terms 
of said agreement are as follows: 

SEE PLEA AGREEMENT. 

I fully understand that the Court is not bound by the terms of the plea agreement, and 
may accept or reject said agreement. If the Court rejects the agreement, I also understand the 
Court will not give me the opportunity to withdraw my plea of guilty, unless the plea agreement, 
signed by all parties, is executed in accordance with Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 
11(e)(1)(A) or Rule 11(e)(1)(C). 

(19) I believe that my lawyer has done all that anyone could do to counsel and assist me, 
AND I AM SATISFIED WITH THE ADVICE AND HELP HE HAS GIVEN ME. 
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(20) I know that the Court will not permit anyone to plead "GUILTY" who maintains 
he/she is innocent and, with that in mind, and because I am "GUILTY" and do not believe I am 
innocent, I wish to plead "GUILTY" and respectfully request the Court to accept my plea of 
"GUILTY" and to have the Clerk enter my plea of "GUILTY" as follows. 

GUILTY as to Counts 10, 12 and 15. 

(21) My mind is clear, I am not under the influence of alcohol or drugs, and I am not 
under a doctor's care. The only drugs, medicines or pills that I took within the past seven (7) 
days are: NONE 

(22) I have never been confined in any institution for the treatment of mental illness. I 
have never been adjudicated mentally incompetent. No psychiatrist, physician, or psychologist 
has ever found me to be mentally ill. I know of no reason why my mental competence at the time 
of the commission of the alleged offense(s), or at the present time, should be questioned. 

(23) I offer my plea of "GUILTY" freely and voluntarily, and further state that my plea 
of guilty is not the result of any force or threats against me, or of any promises made to me other 
than those noted in this petition. I further offer my plea of "GUILTY" with full understanding 
of all the matters set forth in the Indictment and in this petition, and in the certificate of my 
attorney which is attached to this petition. 

(24) I waive the reading of the Indictment in open court, and I request the Court to enter 
my plea of "GUILTY" as set forth in paragraph (20) of this petition. 

(25) I swear that I have read, understood, and discussed with my attorney, each and every 
part of this Petition to Plead Guilty, and that the answers which appear in every part of this 
petition are true and correct. 

Signed and Sworn to by me in open court, in the presence of my attorney, this 8th day of 
November, 1999. 

JDefendant 

Subscribed and Sworn to before me this 8th day of November, 1999. 
b6 

b7C 
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL 

The undersigned, as lawyer and counselor for the defendant,! 
hereby certifies: 

b6 

b7C 

(1) I have read and fully explained to the defendant the allegations contained in the 
Indictment in this case, and the maximum penalties for each count, and that to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, the statements, representations and declarations made by the defendant in 
the foregoing petition are in all respects accurate and true. 

(2) I explained the maximum penalty for each count to the defendant. 

(3) The plea of "GUILTY" offered by the defendant in paragraph (20) accords with my 
understanding of the facts he related to me and is consistent with my advice to the defendant. 

(4) In my opinion, the defendant's waiver of reading of the Indictment in open court as 
provided by Rule 10 is voluntarily and understanding^ made, and I recommend to the Court that 

the waiver be accepted. 

(5) In my opinion, the plea of "GUILTY" offered by the defendant in paragraph (20) of 
the petition is voluntarily and understanding^ made. I recommend that the Court accept the plea 

of "GUILTY." 

(6) I have made no predictions or promises to the defendant concerning any sentence the 
Court may award, except as noted in the space below: I have gone over with the defendant the 
ramifications of his plea with respect to the Sentence Guidelines. Although the sentencing is 
entirely up to the Court, the defendant has been made aware of what the guideline sentence may 
be in this case based upon his counsel’s understanding and experience of the Sentencing 
Guidelines. However, the defendant is aware any guideline calculations made by his attorney are 
merely predictions of how the guidelines apply to his offense conduct, but that it is solely up to 
the Court to ultimately determine the sentence the defendant is to receive. 

(7) I further represent to the Court that the defendant’s plea of "GUILTY" is the result 
of a plea agreement. The terms of the agreement are set out in paragraph (18) of the petition, and 
I have informed the defendant that the Court is not bound by the terms of the agreement and that 
if the Court rejects the agreement, the Court will not give him the opportunity to withdraw his 
plea of "GUILTY," unless the plea agreement, signed by all parties, is executed in accordance 
with Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 11(e)(1)(A) or Rule 11(e)(1)(C). 

Signed by me in open court in the presence of the defendant above named and after full 
discussion of the contents of this certificate with the defendant, this 8th day of November, 1999. 

b6 

b7C 
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ORDER 

-v 

I find that the plea of guilty was made by the defendant freely, voluntarily, and because 

he is guilty as charged in Counts 10, 12, and 15, and not out of ignorance, fear, inadvertence or 

coercion, and with full understanding of its consequences. I further find that the defendant has 

admitted the essential elements of the crime charged and is mentally competent. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the defendant’s plea of "GUILTY" be accepted and 

entered as prayed for in the petition and as recommended in the certificate of his lawyer. 

Done in open court this Ml day of November, 1999. 
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FD-350 (Rev. 5-8-81) 

(Mount Clipping in Space Below) 

Man sentenced 
to 90 years for 
robbery spree 

A 24-year-old Wichita man faces 
nine decades in federal prison for a 
two-month armed robbery spree last 
summer. 

Tuan M. Pham received a sentence 
of 89 years and 6 months without 
parole Monday from U.S. District 
Judge Wesley Brown. 

A jury convicted Pham on May 24 
of 14 criminal counts connected with 
armed robberies of the Airport 
Ampco Parking, After Dark Video, a j 
Radio Shack and Prologic Computer j 
between June 3 and Aug. 3. 
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